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=i24)) (Mf7E2)
Wealthplus Holdings Limited Sk ERERs A 192,000,000 = 38.42
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Consolidated Income Statement

L E
el

(Year ended 31 March 2009)
(BE=ZThF=A=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2009 2008
Bi=E —EEhE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
REVENUE EERA 5 1,070,975 860,487
Cost of sales SHERA (797,899) (658,131)
Gross profit EF 273,076 202,356
Other income and gain E MU R U= 5 5,437 18,678
Selling and distribution costs SHE K& SHA AN (15,303) (15,231)
Administrative expenses THFAX (78,147) (65,144)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE A=A 6 185,063 140,659
Tax HiIE 9 (21,237) (16,001)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO RATREZEA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ELEERT 10 163,826 124,658
DIVIDENDS 3= 11 119,924 89,307
HK cents HK cents
AL A
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATEBERBRESTEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEERER
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic EZ9N 32.8 26.6
Diluted e N/ATRE A N/AZNE




Consolidated Balance Sheet

FeEEARE
(31 March 2009)
(=®BAF=A=1-R)

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 056
Annual Report 2009 057

Notes 2009 2008
Bo=E —ETHF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment b E Y 13 293,268 268,353
Prepaid land lease payments Taf L E IR 14 75,080 72,971
Prepayments and deposits for property, Y BEREEL
plant and equipment FERRERIES 15 2,177 6,237
Goodwill EES 16 26,112 26,112
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 396,637 373,673
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =& 18 133,916 123,508
Accounts and bills receivable JEULBR 3k & =R 19 190,978 146,582
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIA © e R EMERGRIE 10,370 8,469
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREeEEER 20 297,423 274,585
Total current assets mEEERE 632,687 553,144
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Accounts and bills payable FETER R R R IR 21 55,071 55,599
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEtREREMEFIE 23 59,667 61,295
Tax payable FERI 1A 25,168 16,851
Total current liabilities mEAERE 139,906 133,745
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 492,781 419,399
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABNRABEE 889,418 793,072
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREaE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE 24 16,928 12,903
Net assets BEFE 872,490 780,169
EQUITY B
Issued capital BB TR A 25 4,997 4,997
Reserves ] 27 807,531 725,204
Proposed final dividend R AR HIR B 11 59,962 49,968
Total equity BAMBE 872,490 780,169

CHUNG YUK SING

EEH

Director

E2E

CHEN HSIAO YING
UN 7
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeEREExR

(Year ended 31 March 2009)

(BE—ZTNF=A=1+—HLFE)

Share Statutory Exchange Asset Proposed
Issued premium  Capital  surplus fluctuation revaluation Retained final
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve  profits dividend Total
i HE E2 -3 -4
M BRAORE  RER EARGE BHEE RKBRG EMRE EREN  RERR Eh)
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$'000
Tér  TAr TAr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr  TAr  ThR
(Note 27)  (Note 27)
(Brer)  (Bstor)
At 1 Apri 2007 RZETtERA-A 4270 359,932" (229 10945* 14363  7.844* 151,073 25620 573,818
Issue of shares RirET 25 721 112,654 - - - - - - 113,381
Surplus on revaluation BB 13 - - - - - 5634 - - 5634
Deferred tax charged Bk ZEREHE 2% - - - - - (1,09) - - (1,003)
Exchange realignment B A% - - - - 8730 - - - 8730
Release of reserve upon the HE—BEEER
disposal of a revalued property RS - - - - - (370) 370 - -
Total income and expenses BN ERPRERN
recognised directly in equity W s - - - - 870 417 370 - 3327
Profit for the year ERaT - - - - - - 124,658 - 124658
Total income and expenses FRWT 2%
for the year - - - - 28730 41711 125,028 - 157,929
Transfer to reserve BREEREE - - - 2500 - - (2500) - =
Final 2007 dividend declared BER-EEtERIRE - - - - - - - (25620) (25620)
Additional final 2007 divicend BRNZEZLEEIRERE
pad 11 - - - - - - U - Ut
Interim 2008 dividend 2R N\FhERE 11 - - - - - - (34978) - (4978)
Proposed final 2008 dividend BR-TT\ERERS 11 - - - - - - (49.968) 49,968 -
At 31 March 2008 and RZZENE=ZA=+-Hk
1 April 2008 “ZZ/\fNA-A 4997 472,586" (229 13445  43,093* 12,015* 184,204 49968 780,169
Surplus on revaluation BhRH 13 - - - - - 10,694 - - 10,69
Deferred tax charged BB EERE % - - - - - (2602) - - [2602)
Exchange realignment EiA% - - - - 30,338 - - - 30,333
Total income and expenses HERNERTEAN
recognised directly in equity W e - - - - 30338 80% - - 3B4%
Profit for the year ERREH - - - - - - 163826 - 163,826
Total income and expenses Enf e
for the year - - - - 30333 8092 163326 - 202,251
Release upon deregistration of AEERE A ARER
a subsidiary - - - (974) (207) - 1,181 - -
Transfer to reserve ERTRE - - - 130 - - (1,30) - -
Final 2008 dividend declared BER-ZEE/\EXHRE - - - - - - - (49968) (49,968)
Interim 2009 dividend “EENERHRE 11 - - - - - - (59,962) - (59,962)
Proposed final 2009 dividend BE-EENERHARE 1 - - - - - - (59.962) 59,962 -
At 31 March 2009 W-ZENF=A=1-H 4907 472586%  (00F 13821 73219*  20407* 208027* 59962 872,490
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$807,531,000 * ZERBREEEIERAEBRAEERRBR

(2008: HK$725,204,000) in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group.

RN 2 4R A % #807,531,0008 L (Z T T )\ F :
725,204,000/ 7T ) °



Consolidated Gash Flow Statement

= A, i = §
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(Year ended 31 March 2009)
(BE=ZThF=A=1+—HILFE)

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 058
Annual Report 2009 059

Notes 2009 2008
Bo=E —EEAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBELZRERE
Profit before tax BB AR 185,063 140,659
Adjustments for: LARIEE % -
Bank interest income ERITHBUA 5 (4,294) (5,933)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - BE &&E
plant and equipment and prepaid land IHE R i
lease payments HER e 5 (159) (12,244)
Loss on revaluation on an item of property, B - BEREE
plant and equipment HEB 28 6 470 -
Write off of items of property, plant W - BRE KR E
and equipment (=] 6 182 -
Depreciation e 6 33,818 31,316
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEfT -t A0 E kIR 5 6 2,138 2,015
217,218 155,813
Increase in inventories FEEN (10,408) (66,362)
Increase in accounts and bills receivable JE U BR R e SR HRIE N (44,396) (60,781)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, ARSI ~ Be REAM
deposits and other receivables FEUERIER A (38 40) (1,826) 1,728
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and bills payable FEBRFR R Z 01, (5 d) (528) 21,945
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities P& B 1B R E fth FE < /I8
and other payables #an,/ Crd) (1,628) 8,058
Cash generated from operations CEEEZRS 158,432 60,401
Dividends paid EIRE (109,930) (64,959)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEBFEH (6,353) (11,379)
Overseas tax paid EADEINMIIR (6,152) (3,044)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEXREE RS
operating activities wAS CRE) FE 35,997 (18,981)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~BREZRBELZHESRE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, LEME - BEKZEEE
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease FT{S R38R FES 4
payments, net HEREFE 182 25,743
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEX
plant and equipment REEE (26,267) (14,803)
Purchase of prepaid land lease payments EEEMN LT HEER 14 - (1,503)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1y NG] 28 - 17,828
Increase in prepayments and deposits BEYE  BEREE AN
for property, plant and equipment SRIERIE SN 15 (2,177) (6,237)
Decrease in non-pledged deposits BAREIHRABEBGB
with original maturity of over three months =18 Rz IFEHE TR
when acquired A 20 22,342 72,192
Decrease in pledged deposits EREFRRD 20 - 5,518
Interest received BUF & 4,294 5,933
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities % & EBIELE =
BWERACRHE)FE (1,626) 104,671




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continueq)

FeBenER©)
(Year ended 31 March 2009)
(HE-ZTNF=A=1+—HItFE)

Notes 2009 2008
Bi=E —EEhE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HekBRESEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS EnFEE 34,371 85,690
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#2H & MRS EEEE 240,046 145,917
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREEFEFE 10,809 8,439
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2ESRES
AT END OF YEAR £EEBER 285,226 240,046
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HeRkAELEEERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DA
Cash and bank balances e RiRIT6TF 20 109,351 125,846
Non-pledged time deposits with original BAREREE LR
maturity of less than three months =1ER ZIFEH
when acquired E TR 20 175,875 114,200
285,226 240,046
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Notes 2009 2008
BoaE —EEhE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries I B AR ZIE 17 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries = NEIE e 17 528,151 487,395
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIA « ke REMERGRIE 152 170
Cash and cash equivalents Re MReEEAR 20 566 280
Total current assets mENEERE 528,869 487,845
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accrued liabilities JEETAE 23 2,188 100
Due to subsidiaries FEASTHT B A 7 FR I8 17 42,962 1,490
Total current liabilities mENBERE 45,150 1,590
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 483,719 486,255
Net assets BEFE 527,087 529,623
EQUITY =N
Issued capital BB TR 25 4,997 4,997
Reserves it 27 462,128 474,658
Proposed final dividend PR R EAAR S 11 59,962 49,968
Total equity BAREE 527,087 529,623

CHUNG YUK SING
EEAH
Director

EZ

CHEN HSIAO YING

BR/N Y
Director

EZ



Notes to Financial Statements
MR =RME

(31 March 2009)
(Z2BAF=A=1—R)

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B, Regent
Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for buildings, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,

being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue

to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Al
income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

2.1
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2.2

2.3

Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements. The adoption of these new interpretations
and amendments has had no significant effect on these financial
statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial
Assets
HK(FRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(FRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction

Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs and HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate’

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs?

HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
— Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.3

Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 13
HK(FRIC)-Int 15
HK(FRIC)-Int 16
HK(FRIC)-Int 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 18

Borrowing Costs’
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Puttable Financial
Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation’

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
— Eligible Hedged Items?

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
— Embedded Derivatives’

Customer Loyalty Programmes’
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’
Hedges of a Net Investment in

a Foreign Operation’

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners?

Transfers of Assets from Customers®

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 April 2009

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 April 2010

3 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1 July
2009

* Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7,

HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20,
HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36,
HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.
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2.3

24

Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it
has concluded that while the adoption of HKAS 27 (Revised) may
result in changes in accounting policies and HKFRS 8 and HKAS

1 (Revised) may result in new or amended disclosures, these new
and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company'’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and subsequently
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

2.3
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 2.4
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is

disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of

is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining

the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of

in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the

operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,

and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed only if there has

been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset

is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) contrals, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (i)
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or

significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power

in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

Q) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 15%

Over the lease terms or 20%,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures, equipment and 20%
motor vehicles

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest

rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred
to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to accounts and bills receivable, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability

of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other payables are
initially stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is
recognised within “finance cost” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continvea) 2.4
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability

and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items
that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 2.4
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each

balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance

sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(ii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

FESHHREE 9

FRiS®i(e&)

BERAEERAENSHEERFERE
=B - XN T BRI BEA T SRR M
AT A EEN IR EER I TR,
BR - PRIAERZEBELEREEENSE
ERBERAERE  ITRERAERTURT
HHM ARG D BELEHIAEER R T

=7
o ©

EEHRBEERABNRENEEABR
BB EE M R (RBX) - 1T
R REELFEBEHRER 2 HE

FTE o

T A A A BN AR 1R & B 4R 3R B AR 1R
BEMNBAATAITESN - BEEHERR
—ERRERNME —RISHERRE - QIR
FEFRIA A EE P] BB FE AU IR B AR

N
WA TR AR E B A] e S B s ]2 7%
WA RER] SERTE R - TZZMT%LEEEW :

(i é%&*%Z%% ERBENE
REbp Rk EHREEETET -
ZIN 3 ITE/A RREEFEAERR
ZEE  NTBYHEELEMEE
BRIZHIRE - &

(i M B AR ERHEE - IRAERF
% - BRI AEAF MK
Bt AR e EEZERMEE
FREDFHER R EEE -



24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continved) 2.4
Employee benefits

Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident

Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions

are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable

in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of

the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the Retirement Scheme. Contributions

to the Retirement Scheme are charged to the income statement

as incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar way

to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vests fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer
contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated

by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required

to make contributions for their employees who are registered as
permanent residents in Mainland China. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continvea) 2.4
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet
date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into

the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are included

in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgement and Estimates 3.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and Estimates
(continued)

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has

to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly

in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows, which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could have
a material effect on the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of buildings of the Group

As described in note 13, the buildings were revalued at the balance
sheet date on a market value existing state basis by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgments, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2009 was HK$26,112,000 (2008: HK$26,112,000). More details are
set out in note 16.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and bills receivable.
Allowances are applied to accounts and bills receivable where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment. No further
business segment information is presented as the Group is solely
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments.

Each of the Group’s geographical segments, based on the location
of customers (the destination of sales), represents a strategic
business unit that offers products to customers located in different
geographical areas which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other geographical segments. The Group’s
customer-based geographical segments are as follows:

(@) Mainland China

(b) Japan

(c) Europe*

(d) United States of America (“USA”)*
(e) South Korea

() Hong Kong

(¢)) Others

During the year, in view of the growing significance of the customers
from Europe and the USA, these two geographical segments have been
separated from “Others” for presentation purposes. Accordingly, the
relevant comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation.

In addition, segment assets and capital expenditure are further
analysed by the geographical location of the assets (the origin of
sales), where the Group’s assets are located in different geographical
areas from its customers and segment revenue from external
customers or segment assets are 10% or more of the Group’s total
amount. There are two asset-based geographical segments, namely,
Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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4. Segment Information continueq) 4. HEEHEE
Geographical segments based on the location (i) BREEMEHES S
of customers
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain TREJINEEZ-ZZNFR_ZT
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s NE=ZA=1+—HItFEREFFT
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March 2009 MR SRRz S - B RS
and 2008. TEE BEERAXZER -
Group - 2009 rEE-—ZTZNEF
Mainland South Hong
China Japan Europe USA Korea Kong Others Consolidated
HEAKE A% Bl %8 [ & HfiE &4
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn Ti#xn
Segment revenue: ARERWA
Sales to external customers HETNRARE 579,357 136,748 108,332 99,960 65,135 21,072 60,371 1,070,975
Segment results PREE 154,044 37,521 24,836 20,641 17,951 5,338 12745 213,076
Interest and other HEREM
unallocated income RABHRA 5,437
Unallocated expenses FARER (93,450)
Profit before tax BEtRER 185,063
Tax BE (21,237)
Proft for the year YNG[Y
attributable to equity FAANE(S
holders of the Company ERRA 163,326
Segment assets NEEE 379,476 39,896 70,319 91,344 22,706 7,118 43,963 655,422
Unallocated assets APEBE 373,902
1,029,324
Segment liabilities PEERE 21,613 2,159 12,413 9,657 2419 584 9,985 58,830
Unallocated fabltes KAREHE 9,004
156,834
Other segment information: HiHEEE
Depreciation and amortisation FEREE 14,729 3,444 2,808 2,884 1,645 538 1,562 27,700
Unallocated amounts APHEE 8,256
35,956
Capital expenditure HARY 6,860 58 5786 12,278 7 B 1501 27878
Unallocated amounts AAEEE 4,626

32,504
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4. Segment Information (continueq)

(i)

4,

PEEE 2

Geographical segments based on the location (i) BREFMEMESEE)
of customers (continued)
Group — 2008 REE-——TTN\F
Mainland South Hong
China Japan Europe USA Korea Kong Others  Consolidated
HEAR AR il e HE &5 EftitE T
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AL b TAL AL AL TAL TAL AL
Segment revenue: ARERA -

Sales to external customers HEFHRZE 474,553 147,331 57,668 24,664 58,891 25,380 72,000 860487
Segment results PEEE 105,589 33,425 16,046 5,190 14,812 6,779 19,915 202,356
Interest and other e R

unallocated income RATMA 18,678
Unallocated expenses KORER (80,375)
Profit before tax EYEIy 140,659
Tax G (16,001)
Profit for the year RARIRE

attributable to equity BB

holders of the Company ERRA 124,658
Segment assets PEEE 326,458 61,811 56,743 36,903 24,421 10,850 53,640 570,826
Unallocated assets FOREE 355,991

926,817
Segment liabilities PEER 23,046 2,589 11,156 9,692 904 538 7,674 55,599
Unallocated liabilities AOREE 91,049
146,648

Other segment information: HitHEEH
Depreciation and amortisation FEREE 14,262 4,428 1,733 741 1,770 763 2,164 25,861
Unallocated amounts AAEEE TA4T0
33,331
Capital expenditure EARx 5819 1,806 707 302 722 311 883 10,550
Unallocated amounts i 6,610

17,160
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4. SDEEHEH=

Geographical segments based on the location (i) REEREHEIE
of assets
Mainland
China Hong Kong Consolidated
B KB BB wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHBT FET
Group - 2009 AEE-—FBAF
Segment assets as at RZZEZNF=HA
31 March 2009 =+—HBZREEE 555,574 99,848 655,422
Unallocated assets RPOMREE 373,902
1,029,324
Capital expenditure =¥ 27,878 - 27,878
Unallocated amounts RO L5 4,626
32,504
Group — 2008 ReEB - —ZTEN\F
Segment assets as at RZZZEN\F=H
31 March 2008 =t+—BZHEEE 461,340 109,486 570,826
Unallocated assets ROBEEE 355,991
926,817
Capital expenditure BAHX 10,550 - 10,550
Unallocated amounts RO L5 6,610

17,160
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts. All significant intra-group transactions have been eliminated

on consolidation.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gain is as

5. ERIA - Hftlg AR

BRWABIREE 2 258 - THEMERER
ERFMRCEEMIBERFE - AK

ERRIMREEARZERGARERY

REBLSZEWA - HWA RS 2 D

follows: (AN
2009 2008
—EThEF —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#xT FAIT
Revenue EERA
Sale of goods EmiEeE 1,070,975 860,487
Other income Hig A
Bank interest income ERITHBUA 4,294 5,933
Others EAb 984 501
5,278 6,434
Gain Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE « BE&RE
plant and equipment and MIBNLHE
prepaid land lease payments IR 2 W= 159 12,244
Other income and gain E A YA R 7 5,437 18,678
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Profit Before Tax 6. [R7EF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AREFEBRBATEANNEG(GEA) TH&
18 .
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 797,899 658,131
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 1,500 1,450
Depreciation (Note 13)* e (ffaE13)* 33,818 31,316
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEfT T AR SRR
(Note 14)* (MdzE14)~ 2,138 2,015
Employee benefits expenses (excluding EBEEANLTEH(TBEES
directors’ remuneration — Note 7): & —MizE7) -
Wages and salaries TENRHS 165,315 146,643
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIRSET BN
contribution schemes) (EEEHEFETE]) 9,759 7,200
Less: Forfeited contributions W BRI TR (47) (128)
Net pension scheme contributions RNETEIHTFR 9,712 7,072
Total employee benefits expenses* 1R 1{E B AR A 175,027 153,715
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFEEHE 2
leases in respect of land and buildings* K3 2,937 3,585
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWHE - BEMREEE
plant and equipment and RIBA T ERIE 2
prepaid land lease payments Wezs (159) (12,244)
Loss on revaluation of items of property, EhYE - BE KR
plant and equipment IHE &8 470 -
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N Z R 2,327 1,325
Write-off of items of property, WEEE - BREMEREEE
plant and equipment 182 =
* Included in the respective balances are the following amounts which are - FIEERPEEUATHALXAREDE
also included in cost of inventories sold disclosed above: FERAZ
2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Depreciation e 17,167 17,052
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEfT AR E AR 1,400 1,128
Employee benefits expenses EERAEZ L 153,400 128,903
Minimum lease payments under operating T MEFKETRE

leases in respect of land and buildings FHIEFRES M 2,573 2,378
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7. Directors’ Remuneration 7.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EFEMe

REREZEMEREFTEHERIZMER
ARESF LR ERRA D REER
BGEPIZFEABEFEIRENT

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENE —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#xT FAT
Fees e 360 360
Other emoluments: Hp<
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He BB REWREF 7,697 4,671
Discretionary bonuses EIBIEAT 4,243 1,344
Pension scheme contributions BRI ET B 424 236
12,364 6,251
12,724 6,611
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHTESE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

FANTEILFNTES ZREM

the year were as follows: ™~
2009 2008
—EENF —E2ET)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FExT FAT
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PREZR A 120 120
Mr. Li Chi Chung X 120 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony RSB S A 120 120
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2008: Nil).

FAWELBEMBIIERNTESZBHE
(ZZZENF - &) -
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7. EEM&»

Executive directors b) HTEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2ER B
e BYER [l g BE E3 [k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT FHBT THBT BT FAT
2009 —ETNE
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing EEfRE - 1,664 1,783 113 3,560
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying SUN-F S - 1,560 927 100 2,587
Ms. Chen Li Ying RBF it - 1,300 200 72 1,572
Ms. Tsang Sau Fan BESRL - 1,300 500 72 1,872
Mr. Chen Zhen Hao PREZEE - 667 460 - 1,127
Mr. Chang Wen Hsiang SRR AE - 1,206 373 67 1,646
- 7,697 4,243 424 12,364
2008 ZTEN\EF
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing EEFLE - 1,651 384 71 2,106
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying SUN-F S - 720 360 42 1,122
Ms. Chen Li Ying REXZ T - 600 300 36 936
Ms. Tsang Sau Fan BESTL - 1,300 300 72 1,672
Mr. Chung Tung Sau ERELE - 400 - 15 415
- 4,671 1,344 236 6,251

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does not include
the estimated monetary value of the Group’s owned premise
provided rent-free to an executive director, Mr. Chung Yuk
Sing (“Mr. Chung”), during the year. The estimated rental
value of such accommodation was HK$103,000 (2008:
HK$378,000) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

AEEATETMNEFTREXRBERES
AT 2 228

B prREEME W AR BENERRIT
BEREATRE(EREDRFESANA
SEBEMEZGABE BE_FTTL
FZA=T—HLFE ZEBEZHE
{E5108,000/%& 7T (ZFZE/\F : 378,000
7BTT) e
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Five Highest Paid Employees 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2008:
four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one non-director,
highest paid employee for the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out
below:

IEEEHMER

FR A4 FrMEERERE(ZE
TNF: NR)ES FRRSHHINF
BEELXMETHE - REE_TT)N\
FZA=+—BLFEAR KT —2ES
MEHIFEFREBNMSFIBNT ¢

Group

REE
2009 2008
—EThEF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#xT FHIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYES - 825
Discretionary bonuses BEFEAL - 130
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFT B - 50
- 1,005

The remuneration of the non-director, highest paid employee fell
within the designated band of HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2008.

Tax 9.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. The lower Hong Kong profits tax rate is effective
from the year of assessment 2008/2009, and so is applicable to the
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended

31 March 2009. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

MAZE(ILEE)BR A IR A Al(“YM (Shantou)”) and #A & (ILSE) &K A R
A (“YY (Shantou)”) are entitled to be exempted from corporate
income tax in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) for the first
two profit-making years and a 50% reduction in corporate income
tax for the succeeding three years. Moreover, under the relevant tax
laws and regulations in Mainland China, these companies may set
off losses incurred by them in a financial year against profits made by
them in the succeeding financial year or years, subject to a maximum
of five financial years.

BE_EZ)N\F=A=1T—HILFE &
SHHIEEEREENHEN THEEHE
1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T °

i

EENEHUFENERBEENGE
RBEFIL16.5%( —ZZZNF : 17.5%)
MERE REMNBEFINEHRER=ZZ
EN/ —ETNRREERER - FE
AREBE—_ZTAF=A=+—HIL=EE
EEAERBELZERTRF - Hihinry
FERBUEFMOFIE - RIBIRANE B EISFT
ERRNEGTER AOREREHILE
MR EETHE o

MECUS)BRER AR (THECLER) D)
R CLsE) HERAR AR ([ E Gl
SB) AR EMBERMNFENFEA
RAEFB ([ BEAER - AREE
B=FRBRBRAS A TEEMRF
B o BESN - RIBH R P B RRERBER
RA - ZERRABER—EMRFEE
EZREE - BEHERNER —ERZER R
FE 28N BEHZ T EEBAEMRE
E



Tax (continued)

According to the confirmation obtained by the Group from the PRC
tax bureau, the first profit-making year of YY (Shantou) was the year
ended 31 December 2005 and the first profit-making year of YM
(Shantou) was the year ended 31 December 2007.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC (the “New PRC Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January
2008. The PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises.
The State Council of the PRC passed an implementation guidance
note (the “Implementation Guidance”) on 26 December 2007, which
sets out details of how existing preferential income tax rates will be
adjusted to the standard rate of 25%.

For enterprises which were established before the publication of the
New PRC Tax Law and were entitled to preferential treatments of a
reduced corporate income tax rate (“CIT rate”) granted by relevant
tax authorities, the new CIT rate might be gradually increased from
the preferential rate to 25% within 5 years after the effective date

of the New PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. For the regions that
enjoy a reduced CIT rate at 15%, the rate would gradually increase
to 20% for 2009, 22% for 2010, 24% for 2011 and 25% for 2012
according to the grandfathering rules stipulated in the Implementation
Guidance and related circular. Enterprises that are currently entitled
to exemptions or reductions from the standard income tax rate for a
fixed term may continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term
expires.
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RE|E»

RIEAE B BRBHI R - HE
CUSR) BB ERFEE ARE SRR
+=A=+—BILEE - TRECLE)®
EERNFEABRE ST LE 7
=+—AIEE -

RZZEZLFE=A+"H  ETEZEA
REREREERAXREZEL BB HPEMS
FOE([FFED - FIBERZZZE N\F—
A—B&EM - FTEREZFRAMSHES
—R2%5% MZEZEELF+=ZA=+~
B FEEKEBBA—HEMRIES (B
#Eall) - FYIE SR BNERMEH
RABRBIZEF RN G ©

PR FBUEBMBIAKAL - WEBBETH S
AR TR R EMETEERRN AR
ME @ FIEEFEHEARE B AL
2B = NF—A—H)®B55R
B ENIE £ 25% © Bt F A 15% HYR 1k 5
FriSfiEmMEm S - REBESHNEOIE
40 R K AR B i e ) B E ST R - R FEFTS AR
EEDRR=ZTTNE  —T—TF - =
T——F N T — —FERHHBINE20%
22% ~ 24% [ 25% - BRI ZE AN —EE
EHHEBESEEMSHERE SR EN D
¥ MEEZAZESS  BEEZBEE
BARR fE M A LE ©

Group
REE
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Current tax charge for the year: AFEEHELH :
Hong Kong B 8,591 6,348
Elsewhere HAithtth 5 13,290 7,796
Overprovision of current tax in respect of B SR IERRE RS
prior years (1,384) -
Deferred (Note 24) IEIE (MT5E24) 740 1,857
Total tax charge for the year NEEHIAS H 4% 21,237 16,001
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10.

Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using
the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the Company
and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the

effective tax rates is as follows:

R\

BRARIAR R R K KA B A RIALE
BB BLAERATE R R A E 2 R AR
M2 IR H IR A B R B 2 BIR R
S HAHEAIAT

Group
TEH
2009 2008
—EThEF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHIT
Profit before tax R B 7 185,063 140,659
Tax at the applicable rate to profit in the EHBY S AR 2 EA
tax jurisdictions concerned FTiSTi Rt 8 2 TR 32,801 25,160
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday RSB 2 BEH R (10,752) (7,872)
Effect on opening deferred tax with TSR TR [E S R VR E R 1B
decrease in rate ol (29) -
Adjustments in respect of current tax BEFERHIEEL AR
of previous years (1,384) -
Income not subject to tax BERRUA (364) (3,078)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR AR A B R 1,228 687
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the NEAREE Z BN E AR
distributable profits of the Group’s A] 73K 5 A5 % FE 0T
PRC subsidiaries ol 3,355 -
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE - 223
Others EAh (3,618) 881
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BRAEEERREAE
FHIE H 21,237 16,001

Profit for the Year Attributable to Equity Holders of 10.

the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a profit of
HK$107,394,000 (2008: HK$92,497,000) which has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company (Note 27).

ﬁ’.&ﬁlﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁkﬁiﬁﬂiﬁiﬁ
I

HE-_ZTAE=A=+—HILEE
RAARREREABRGGEEENEIE
st A 107,394,000 L ( Z T T )N\ F
92,497,000 7T ) + E R AR Bl B ISk
AR (FEE27) °
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Dividends 11. KR
2009 2008
—EENF —ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interim — HK12 cents (2008: HK7 cents) FRHARR B — B AR AR 28
per ordinary share based on 499,680,000 (ZZZT)NEFE - 78
shares in issue 1EE, 317499,680,0008%
R EHE 59,962 34,978
Proposed final — HK12 cents R AR AR B— A @Ak
(2008: HK10 cents) per ordinary share 128 ZZFZTN\F - 107810)
based on 499,680,000 ¥ 2, 3£17499,680,0000%
shares in issue st & 59,962 49,968
Additional 2007 final dividend “ETHFREINREIRE - 4,361
119,924 89,307
The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the number of ANEEF 2 ER AR BIZN BRRE HE B
shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is subject to the approval TIRMNEBBEFTE - WEAARTRERIE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general [ERRBFAREHAERE - FAMEE ©
meeting.
The additional 2007 final dividend represents final dividend payable to R FREINRAREEESIEES
shares issued subsequent to the approval of the consolidated financial B+ F A=t —HLIFEREUS
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 by the directors. HMREBENEBITRN ZARMRE

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity 12. FLFHBEREBRERSEARN

Holders of the Company sEREF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for FRRERBF THIREFE AR A R E B
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for the A A 1L 4 7 163,826,000/ 7T (=
year of HK$163,826,000 (2008: HK$124,658,000), and the weighted ZZ )\ F : 124,658,000/ 7TE ) A K
average number of 499,680,000 (2008: 469,297,000) ordinary shares N B %% 17499,680,000 % (=TT )\ & :

in issue during the year. 469,297,000 A% ) & 48 A% 2 hnkE 15 B st
No diluted earnings per share is presented for both current and last AEEREFEAHEEEHEYE T
years as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence MR I ERZEEEZ5 GRS
during these years. B8 e
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. P%¥ BERBRE
Group REE
31 March 2009 —EEhAEFE=A=+—H
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
Leasehold Plant and and motor
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
HE HRE£8
BT MEEE BERRE RERAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TEr TEx TER
Cost or valuation: Ak fAME -
At beginning of year E4 167,186 46,917 117,390 35,914 367,407
Additions NE 18,924 4,275 4,682 4,623 32,504
Disposals L& - - (23) (846) (869)
Write-off i - (174) (247) (172) (593)
Surplus on revaluation BEEHS 6,077 - - - 6,077
Deficit on revaluation BfhE4 (470) - - - (470)
Exchange realignment PE N AR 10,948 2,583 3,762 1,466 18,759
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEENE=A=+—H 202,665 53,601 125,564 40,985 422,815
Accumulated depreciation: 2fNE:
At beginning of year ) - 21,888 58,670 18,496 99,054
Provided during the year FENBHE 4,617 9,135 13,167 6,899 33,818
Disposals HE - - - (846) (846)
Write-off i - (28) (230) (153) (411)
Write-back of revaluation BB (4,617) - - - (4,617)
Exchange realignment B SR - 980 864 705 2,549
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEENE=A=+—H - 31,975 72,471 25,101 129,547
Net book value: EEFE :
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEENE=A=+—H 202,665 21,626 53,093 15,884 293,268

Analysis of cost or valuation: AT EAT :

At cost BAME - 53,601 125,564 40,985 220,150
At 31 March 2009 valuation BN -ZETNE=A=1—H
ZiHE 202,665 - - - 202,665

202,665 53,601 125,564 40,985 422,815
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Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. P%  BERBRE©)
Group e
31 March 2008 —EEN\F=A=+—H
Fumniture,
fixtures,
equipment
Leasehold Plant and and motor
Buidings  improvements machinery vehicles Total
HE A KB
BT MR B Rk FERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL THL AL THL
Cost or valuation: PRASRIEE :
At beginning of year F7 100,032 39,178 101,531 31,314 272,055
Additions NE 3,021 2,761 6,246 3,629 15,657
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENB AR
(Note 28) (FizE28) 54,000 3,377 4150 - 61,527
Disposals HE (2,700) (1,049) - (444) (4,193)
Surplus on revaluation EARYS 1,863 - - - 1,863
Exchange realignment EH R 10,970 2,650 5,463 1,415 20,498
At 31 March 2008 RZZZ\E=A=1+—H 167,186 46,917 117,390 35,914 367,407
Accumulated depreciation: ZREME -
At beginning of year E41 = 14,305 42,433 12,422 69,160
Provided during the year ENEHE 3819 7,682 13,889 5,926 31,316
Disposals HE 48) (944) - (414) (1,406)
Write-back of revaluation EhERE (3,771) - - - (3,771)
Exchange realignment T - 845 2,348 562 3,755
At 31 March 2008 R=TE\F=R=+—-H - 21,888 58,670 18,496 99,054
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2008 RZZZ\E=A=1+—H 167,186 25,029 58,720 17,418 268,353
Analysis of cost or valuation: AR EEA :
At cost R AME - 46,917 117,390 35,914 200,221
At 31 March 2008 valuation BR=ZZN\E=R=1—H
ZfhfE 167,186 - - - 167,186
167,186 46,917 117,390 35,914 367,407
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13.

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. P%¥  BERBE 2
The Group’s buildings were revalued individually at 31 March 2009 by RE IZ%—T‘—EE BYHESBRGERMZE
Greater China Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified FEIEBRAREEANF=A=1T—
valuers, at an aggregate open market value of HK$202,665,000, HizHEERKHA ELA B T E /E R B AL -
based on their existing use. Revaluation surpluses of HK$6,077,000 A £ 18 202,665,00078 T o | u{H{EFT
and a revaluation deficit of HK$470,000 resulting from the above EEEEHE6,077,00008 7T & E L E AL
valuation were credited to the asset revaluation reserve and charged 470,000 LRI Rl A B EE A -
to the income statement, respectively. MR R R o
Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less HE AL MEFIREL AR ZRBITE
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been S8R - HBRT B R FE A178,254,0005 7T
HK$178,254,000 (2008: HK$153,944,000). (ZZ=Z)N\F : 153,944,000 7T) °
As at 31 March 2009, one of the Group’s buildings with a net book —EENF=ZA=1+—H8 AKEEHAH
value of HK$828,000 (2008: HK$132,000) has been provided as rent- —Iﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂEBZB 000BTL(ZZEZ)N\E :
free accommodation to an executive director of the Company during 132,000/ 7T ) 2 EFRFEALRHE T ARA A
the year (Note 14). —BHITESERMEERE(MFE14) o
Prepaid Land Lease Payments 14. WL EERIE
Group
AEH
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TH&xT FAT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FABRMEE 75,034 67,870
Additions INE - 1,503
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28) U B BT B A &) (i 7528) - 14,000
Amortisation recognised during the year (Note 6) FA%E pufEsR#4 (FfE6) (2,138) (2,015)
Disposals HE - (10,712)
Exchange realignment B = 4,322 4,388
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—BZEEE 77,218 75,034
Current portion included in prepayments, HAFENRIE - e R
deposits and other receivables H b el R IE 2 BNERER 5 (2,138) (2,063)
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 75,080 72,971




14.

15.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 092
Annual Report 2009 093

Prepaid Land Lease Payments (continued) 14. FAFTHBERED
An analysis of carrying amounts of prepaid land lease payments of the REEBERB  AEEBEN LHWHEER
Group at the balance sheet date is as follows: HZREEDTAT
2009 2008
ZEThEF ZTETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Long term leases outside Hong Kong BBEINZ REAEA 3,447 3,282
Medium term leases in Hong Kong BBER R EIFRL 12,043 12,352
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BBEINZ R ERFAL 61,728 59,400
77,218 75,034
Certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a net book RNEBEE TIREFE S $£1,607,000% 7T
value of HK$1,607,000 (2008: HK$1,536,000) in aggregate have (ZZZT)\F : 1,536,000/ ) 2@t £+
been provided as rent-free accommodation to an executive director iﬁﬁﬁiﬁ RIBRFENRBIERAR AT —BH
of the Company during the year (Note 13). TESZ2HAFE(MEE18) °
Prepayments and Deposits for Property, Plant and 15. PX  BERRBZHTRIEA

Equipment

As at 31 March 2009, certain subsidiaries of the Company have
entered into contracts with independent third party contractors for
construction of building facilities and leasehold improvements at a
consideration of HK$6,764,000 (2008: HK$15,640,000). As at 31
March 2009, HK$2,177,000 (2008: HK$6,237,000) had been paid
by the Group and was classified as “Prepayment and deposits for
property, plant and equipment”.

RhiEg®

—ETHhAF=A=1+—8 AQFE
ﬂﬁ% RIEBYE = HEAREBINE
49+ LAR(E6,764,0008 TL( —ZZ \F ¢
15,640,000/ 7T ) HEEF R EREEY
¥REIR RZZTTAF=A=1—
B ANEBEX2,177,0008 (=2
J\E : 6,237,000/87T) + WHI{E[ 2
R N st 2 TR sRIB R IEE ]
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16. Goodwill 16. &
2009 2008
ZEThEF T )N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Cost and carrying amount: BB R BRENE
At beginning and end of year RER) M F & 26,112 26,112
The Group’s goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating unit REB BB BREESREKK
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments FERBEBEZHeEESM([ZENM]) -
(the “Unit”). The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined ZEM2ANESEHREFRAEES
from the value in use, which is calculated with reference to cash flow E o MmEREBERRERRREEAESSR
projections based on a five-year period financial budgets approved M RAFYRBEMERNZEESREA
by senior management. The financial budgets are prepared reflecting H -MBRBEZGERRER - BERX
actual and prior year performance and development expectations. HREHER ReReBllcEER
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the budgeted REMBEE 2 EMNX(AEEEEFER
gross margins which is the average gross profit margin achieved in ZEEPMER 2 THER X)) KR %E8%
the year immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate (THBRT AT R RMLERRZ BB B Bl 2 b E B
of 8%, which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the B2) - ARMET A FHEZEM ZHER
Unit. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Unit EZEMFBRER/10% - Mk =58
is 10% for the first two years and 3% for the succeeding three years. A3% - EFRE - ARZEBREXTES
The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any of i IR 8 BT SBHZEM 2R
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount IREERR L AR RTIRE £ 58 - ARZEMNZ
of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the ARECERNERAE  EERERE
recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying amount, EAERAEENELFRE -
the directors consider there was no impairment of the goodwill at the
balance sheet date.
17. Investments in Subsidiaries 17. RMBLARZHRE
Company
N
2009 2008
“EThE ZETN\F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETHIRE - IR AE 43,368 43,368




17.

Investments in Subsidiaries (continueq)

The balances with subsidiaries approximate to their fair values and are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries, would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:
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REARIZERSE #)

BB AR EHEE N HERE L AE
HH - 2B RBRERERE -

TRIMARAMBERR - REFERR
B RERREAEEFAREREAY
EIRRAEEEEFEIEIRMD - &
EXEERRR  FHYIEMKBARERK
SERBANITE

RRRZMEARFBAT

Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
Place of share/paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ registered the Company
registration capital RARFE
and operations BETRG BER AL Principal

Name ML, HE/#E Direct Indirect  activities

ARER BEREENY HMER B MiE FEEK

Jespar Age Limited British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100 - Investment holding

(BVI) 1,000£7T WERR
RBEAE
([RERLS])
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; - 100 Manufacture and trading
EX(EX5E)BRAR &8 Non-voting deferred of sportswear and
HK$10,000 garments
(Note (a) HEREE
LRmABTT ; EBERRHK
BRFRRER
10,000/ 7T
(M)
Far East (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; - 100 Manufacture and trading
ER(EXEE)BRAR 5B Non-voting deferred of sportswear and
HK$10,000 garments
(Note (a) HEREE
LRSI ; BERRMHK
BRFRRER
10,000/ 7T
(HE(a)

EMERRRERAR PRC/Mainland China HK$9,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading
(TBECLEE) ) (Ktstp) R /B AR 9,500,000/ 7% of sportswear and
(“EN (Shantou)”) (Note (b)) garments

YEREE

EBR AR
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17.

Investments in Subsidiaries (continueq)

17. RBARZ®’RE @

Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
Place of share/paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ registered the Company
registration capital PN
and operations BRITRM 3 Epad Principal
Name ML [NV Ve Direct Indirect  activities
ARER BEREENY &R B M FEEB
HECLE) BREBRAR PRGC/Mainland China US$23,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading
(THR=ECLEE) 1) (K (o) /B ARE 23,500,000 of sportswear and
(“YM (Shantou)’) garments
(Note (0) HEREE
EER R
HECUR) HXBRAR PRC/Mainland China HK$15,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading
([FAECILsE) ) (aE() il hBIARE 15,000,000 of sportswear and
(*YY (Shantou)”) garments
(Note (b)) KEREE
EERRAK
Everall Development Limited BVI US$1,000 - 100 Investment holding
KEBRERAA RBRUE 1,000 REER
Yue Mei (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading
HE(EXEE)BRAA B 1,000/7C of sportswear and
garments
HYEREE
EHRRAK
Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Manufacture and trading
EXERBRAR &k 1787T of sportswear and
garments
HEREER
EERRAK
Far East (International) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Manufacture and trading
Garment Limited EF 18T of sportswear and
R (ER) RREBRAR garments
YEREE
EHRRAK
Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Manufacture and trading
WE(EB)RRBRAT & 1787T of sportswear and
garments
HEREER
EERRAK
Wayable International Inc. BVI US$100 - 100 Investment holding
ERRLS 100%7T REER
Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100  Manufacture and trading
FH(EXEE)BRAR BB 1,0007%7C of sportswear and
garments
EEREE

EBREAK



17.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 096
Annual Report 2009 097

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) RBEATZIRE 2
Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
Place of share/paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ registered the Company
registration capital RARFE
and operations BETRM REEAL Principal
Name ML, EE/#E Direct Indirect  activities
ARER BEREENY AEfER B MiE TEEK
Actex Garment Co., Limited Taiwan NTD5,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading
RBERAR ae Ak of sportswear and
5,000,0007T garments
KEREER
BERRKK
BRERARKERAA PRC/Mainland China HK$31,226,548 - 100 Manufacture and trading
(FizE(b)) R /B RE 31,226,548/ 7T of sportswear and
(“Maitex PRC”) garments
(Note (b)) KEREER
BERRAK
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Manufacture and trading
Hit 187 of sportswear and
garments
KEREER
BERKERK
SECUEEEKER AR PRC/Mainland China US$1,031,569 - 100 Manufacture and trading
([£ECUEE) 1) (BizEp) R /B ARE 1,031,569 7T of sportswear and
(“KE (Shantou)”) garments
(Note (b)) HEREE
BERRHKK
Eagle Tech (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Manufacture and trading
Hit 187 of sportswear and
garments
KEREER
BERKEAHK
ERGRERKRABRAR PRC/Mainland China US$1,200,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading
(TEREE D (BEED) HRE /B RRE 1,200,000 7T of sportswear and
(“Hung Eagle Garment”) garments
(Note (b)) KEREER
BERKEHK
Notes: B -
(@) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to (@) ERERETERTEEFNERRE - B

attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus
assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other than the nominal
amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been distributed to the
holders of the ordinary shares of the company in such winding-up).

(b) EN (Shantou), YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, KE (Shantou) and
Hung Eagle Garment are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under PRC law.

BEASRER LIRE - UREBFRIRE
AARSESEARBEEERESRE
3 ik #2 211100,000,000,000,000 % 7T 5 /&
TREEBRESHEAR  ARRNZ
BRIARIMEHROEERIN)

(o) FEXECILEE) - MECILEE) - MEECILEE)
Maitex PRC * £ & CIlZR) R B R AR AR
B EAGIER 2 N B ERE -
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18.

19.

Inventories 18. #&
Group
REEH
2009 2008
—EZAF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Raw materials Bt 43,927 37,941
Work in progress B 36,324 59,349
Finished goods SURK G 53,665 26,218
133,916 123,508
Accounts and Bills Receivable 19. BERREFRERRE

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly relate to a few recognised
and creditworthy customers. The credit period is generally for a
period of 30 to 45 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by the management of the Group.
The accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at the
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REE 2 EWIRR T 2EE TR REE
RUFHEFIER - EEH—KRABI0KRE4S
R o AEBEB N H RUIRKABRETBRE
B BEERREGEREKRTF - B
AMIZ R EEE IR E TR - 8
YRR RFIERE SN -

AEBNEEBBRAZEBREAREE
RIBRR BRI T

Group

AEH
2009 2008
—EENEF ZZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Within 30 days 30K 80,076 102,361
31 to 60 days 31 RZE60K 53,758 29,351
61 to 90 days 61 RXZE90K 28,237 8,412
Over 90 days 90ARM E 28,907 6,458
190,978 146,582

The above balance is neither past due nor impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balance relate to receivable for which
there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s accounts and bills receivable as at 31 March
2008 was the amount due from #A#2(E 1L ) BB BmAR Al
(“Yucheng (Kunshan)”), a subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings)
Limited (“Yue Yuen”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, of
HK$2,907,000, which was repayable on similar credit terms to those
offered to the major non-related customers of the Group.

VA_EAE R g B JORUE » BIETEA e
I BR AR AR B 15 8 & - T AN R R KA

RZBENE=A=+—0  BEEX
EEyERERREREREKRKBIZ(R
U)EEHERAERAR([HWE(ELL)])
2,907,000/ 7C ' Z AR EBARRAIZEE
BREBTIH(ER)BRAT(HMITZ
B AR - 23 HBRERHE FAEEE
DIMERF 2 BB EEGRER -
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 20, BHeRBEFHERE
Group Company
rEE ARAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAF —ETN\F —ZEENF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ExT FAT FHET T
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEETF 109,351 125,846 566 280
Time deposits with original REZIEAREBEE
maturity of over three months — @A ZEfBFRK 12,197 34,539 - =
Time deposits with original REEIEA DR
maturity of less than =88 ZE8BFR
three months 175,875 114,200 - —
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREZEEEE 297,423 274,585 566 280

REEBEBERB  AEEUARE(TAR
¥ ) FHEMIR S KIRTTATF £95,717,000
BIL(ZZZ)\F : 115,715,000/87C) °
ARERNMSEREBAEMER - AR
125 [ K ) N B A R (R ADI LA TR AP - &
[EREEERTE @ NEBEESBE

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to HK$95,717,000
(2008: HK$115,715,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies; however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted

21.

to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Accounts and Bills Payable

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the balance
sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21,

RENIRINEEB 2 RITBARBLIRS
HE™ -

FRETNR 1S AR TERAE 27
BREMIFE  AEEHEIEH ST
fEdi— A Z= A A ST TR - 15
R S I SR R B8, « B 1748
B T5 1 R SR BT B R 2 8B
7

EIERRRE

REEBERAZRNEREZEIRIEE
FRBHRER DTN

Group

rEH
2009 2008
—gBAE  —TE)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET THT
Within 90 days 90K~ 51,796 52,577
91 to 180 days 91 RKE180K 1,033 1,331
181 to 365 days 181K E365K 481 1,312
Over 365 days 365K A E 1,761 379
55,071 55,599
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21.

22,

23.

Accounts and Bills Payable (continued) 21. BEEREREREE2)
Included in the accounts and bills payable as at 31 March 2008 was R-ZFEENEFE=A=+—H ' BELEEN
accounts payable of HK$1,282,000 due to JILZE ™ st IR & AL MR A AR N 2458 JE I R T S 2 AR 2 S L R
[R2 7] (“Shantou Xianda”), a related company controlled by a relative ﬁﬁﬁ ([ LFESEE 1)1,282,0005 7T o
of Mr. Chung, a director of the Company, which was repayable EA/NG EE NNRIEEE A 7 HE TS
on similar credit terms to those offered by other major non-related ZAENT o ZEENREREMEEIE
suppliers of the Group. B R FTR] 2 B EEIGRER -
The accounts and bills payable are non-interest-bearing and are ENEBEZREEARBEDR 88—
normally settled on 45-day terms. BA5K o
Banking Facilities 22, BITIRAEEHE
As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by —EENF=A=1T—"H8 " ~AEBZIR
the following: Tﬂ%ﬁﬁ SELATIAISIBEAER
(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent 0] KA 7] % 37 LA 106,000,000 7 JT
of HK$106 million (2008: HK$106 million); and BRZATER(ZESNE :
106,000,000/87T) i K&
(ii) unlimited corporate guarantees executed by two subsidiaries (ii) P N/NGETITE NN B SV of i iEE
of the Company. NEELR o
Accrued Liabilities and Other Payables 23. EBiARREMEFRRE
Group Company
REE I N/NC|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBENF T N\F —EThEF —ZETN\EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT FHET FAT
Deferred income TEIEUA 4,509 4,218 - -
Other payables H b fE S 508 30,049 40,487 - -
Accruals FEsH & 25,109 16,590 2,188 100
59,667 61,295 2,188 100
As at 31 March 2009, included in other payables was an amount —EFENE=F=+—8 ' FAHfM

of HK$3,454,000 due to Pro Kingtex Vietnam Co. Limited (“Pro
Kingtex”), a subsidiary of Yue Yuen, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, which was payable on similar credit terms to those offered
by other major non-related subcontractors of the Group.

As at 31 March 2008, included in other payables was an amount of
HK$2,636,000 representing trade deposits received from Yucheng
(Kunshan).

FEﬁLzTAIEZS454OOO/ETEEFEhLZJS/_\
Al F Z AR R ¥4 7T 2 i B 2 RlPro Kingtex
Vietnam Co. Limited ([ Pro Kingtex ) 2 5%
T R IE B B H A B3RS RS
EIPTEI 2 BB BB IERER -

RZZTENE=A=+—8 st AHME
<t FRIE 2 2,636,000 7T JI AR TR (B 1L )
ZEFIES o
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24. Deferred Tax Liabilities 24, EEREBEARR
Group TEM
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation revaluation subsidiaries Total
R E S A F]
R TRF
InEBRIBHFTE EESM 2N st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT FAT
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZLF
MmA—H 778 474 - 1,252
Deferred tax debited to FANFTAGRE
the consolidated Wk 2 ERETIE
income statement during (Ff5E9)
the year (Note 9) 1,857 - - 1,857
Acquisition of subsidiaries gy =Ml
(Note 28) (FM4zE28) - 7,861 - 7,861
Deferred tax debited to equity FAREARNR
during the year ZREFIA - 1,093 = 1,093
Exchange realignment I 3, F8 EE - 840 - 840
At 31 March 2008 and RZZZNF
1 April 2008 —A=+—H
K= N\EF
mA—H 2,635 10,268 - 12,903
Deferred tax debited/(credited) & R&t A/ ($AB)
to the consolidated RAElER L
income statement during IRIETIE
the year (Note 9) (PfF5E9) (2,615) - 3,355 740
Deferred tax debited to equity FRFAELRZ
during the year IRIETIE - 2,602 - 2,602
Exchange realignment I 3, F8 EE - 683 - 683
At 31 March 2009 RZTETNE
=A=+—H 20 118,668 81655 16,928
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24. Deferred Tax Liabilities continued) 24, EBEEREBERMBR 2
Pursuant to the New PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied BERERFFE - NP EAHE S 2 NG
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment LECERINEREES IR Z B A
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is WA0%TEMFHE - ZBEER_ZZNEF
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 —A—B4&N  WERAR_EELFE+=
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there R=+—B%&2&7 - ih EEIERE
is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. E 7 AR ER I RIBIRY) - BIR]RIEE
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable HATEHHRME - AEBZEAMEA
to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries 5% ° A5 M 78 3k W B B [ P b
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 VYHBARE_SENE—F—BEKE
January 2008. & 2 BT A IR AR AR TRFO R 1A -
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$5,304,000 REBRBBE 4 2 T IAE 185,304,000
(2008: HK$3,947,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting BIL(ZZZT)\4F : 3,947,000/ 7T ) A] £&
against future taxable profits of the company in which the losses [REAFREHSE A B B ERB A ° AR
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of AL A BB A —BREMERRETIEF -
those losses as the aforesaid company has had no taxable profits for MR % S B ERERREHEEE -
some time.
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of RN B A H RS RO 258 B T A P 1S AR
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. BR-
25. Issued Capital 25. BEITERE
Company
PN
2009 2008
—EEhE ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Authorised: SETERRA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0008% A% EE
HK$0.01 each 0.01%8 7T 2 Eimik 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
499,680,000 ordinary shares of 499,680,000 &% EE
HK$0.01 each 0.018 T2 Tk 4,997 4,997
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Issued Capital (continued) 25. BEITERE®)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued capital for the HE_TEEN\F=A=1T—"HILFE «K«
year ended 31 March 2008 was as follows: NEIZBETRAZEBRENT :
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ERITROHE BRITRAE B2 R E AR &t
‘000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FBT FABT FAT
At 1 April 2007 R-ZEZLFMA—H 427,000 4,270 359,932 364,202
Issue of shares (Note) BT (FiaE) 72,680 727 112,654 113,381
At 31 March 2008 R-TZEZEN\F=FA=+—H 499,680 4,997 472,586 477,583
Note: PisE -
During the year ended 31 March 2008, 72,680,000 ordinary shares RIEZNF=ZA=+—HItFE
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at an N BERETESBRI1.56BTEE R
issue price of HK$1.56 per share, in consideration of and in exchange #£1772,680,000 % & Ax E{H0.01 %8 7T
for the acquisition of the Wayable Group (Note 28). ARIIMER R 2 H@R - MERIE
Wayable GroupZ 18 K& 22 #2 {g (5 (Bt
#28) o
Share Option Scheme 26. MBBRiEETE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group and customers of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 6 August 2003 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in

issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

ARARAE—RBRAESTE (%5
2] EEMHARERNEERR
BERINAER2BALIRHIER LK
B Z3NAERSEALBER
RAEE(BEBUIFNTES) &
SEEMES ARBEERIRBH
EERARERR - ZiT8B-FF
=FN\ARBRER  FRIFERITE

SHEKERT © BRI ZErElEE%ZA S
EEHOFERB ©

IREF IR IR S e T B IR M R AT R
fRHESN B BEITEE - HERARRR
B 2 B ATIRD 10% ° REA
@A MR - R ERERRE T W
TEERAERSEATBITHRD
HE  HETHEEBBARARREME
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26.

217.

Share Option Scheme (continueq)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to independent non-executive directors’ approval in advance. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than five
years from date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer of the share
options; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share options have been granted under the Scheme as at
31 March 2009 or up to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Reserves

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference

between the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capitals

of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in August 2003, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the existing
1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid, at par.

26.

217.
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217.

Reserves (continued) 27.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their profits
after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations,

to the statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of their respective registered capitals. Subject to certain
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory
surplus reserve may be used to offset against accumulated losses.
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RIEE T BRG] - ALEEHBEEMA
Ff 8~ a) B BIZA KRB 18 = F110% (4
Bl e ARG ) SR EA T RRERE -
HEEZRHEENEHENESAEZMER
50% ° 7£745 B3 B AR {51 i & T PR 1 AR BR
T EERRREE R REREREEE -

Company bIN/NE|
Retained
Share profits/
premium Capital (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
Notes Jan) BiRA,/
B aE RER B RE (R5tEE) Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT FHIT
(Note)
(B=E)
At 1 April 2007 R_ZFZ+FNA—H 359,932 43,088 (44,206) 358,814
Issue of share capital BITIRAR 25 112,654 - - 112,654
Additional final 2007 dividend ~ —ZZT+FHRINKREIE B 11 - - (4,361) (4,361)
Profit for the year FAmF 10 - - 92,497 92,497
Interim 2008 dividend “ZT \FHEHRE 11 - - (34,978) (34,978)
Proposed final 2008 dividend ~ #UR-ZZ N\FREKE 11 = - (49,968) (49,968)
At 31 March 2008 and RZEZ\F=A=1+ —H
1 April 2008 kZZETN\FMA—H 472,586 43,088 (41,016) 474,658
Profit for the year FAmF 10 - - 107,394 107,394
Interim 2009 dividend DT NEREHRE 11 - - (59,962) (59,962)
Proposed final 2009 dividend BT NFRPRE 11 - - (59,962) (59,962)
At 31 March 2009 R_ZEZAF=A=1+—H 472,586 43,088 (53,546) 462,128
Note: P 5E -

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the then consolidated
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the same
reorganisation over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital
reserve may be distributed to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

ARREAN AR BRIER — SRR RS
AAERNGFSEEFE - BHAR R BRI 2
ARZARARABAEEZEZR - REFEHBRR
% BARREEA AR TARRBRR - R ERE R
IRATALE BT - ARBMAREERE A EEKD
Z|HEIER -
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28.

Business Combination 28. EBSH
On 1 September 2007, the Group acquired the entire interest in the RZZEZELHFNA—HB ~XEBEWE
Wayable Group (the “Acquisition”). The Wayable Group is engaged Wayable Group 2 = 2tz ([ I =
in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments. The T8 | ) o Wayable Group #¢ &= 4 &= & $4
purchase consideration for the acquisition amounted to approximately EEFHRLEKK - WESEBEBIZ2REYD
HK$118,959,000, which was satisfied by the issue of an aggregate of 118,959,000/ 7T * AR A& Biz & AR
72,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of 91.5678 7T 2 EITE#EITE 72,680,000
the Company at an issue price of HK$1.56 per share by the Company R A B AN AR EEO.01 B T 2 il
and a cash consideration of approximately HK$4,322,000. The R A B B8 & A8 494,322,000 JT 2 it ©
remaining balance of HK$1,256,000 was cost and expenses directly #R7E1,256,0008 TRAKBEFENEEE
attributable to the Acquisition. FARBLAN °
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent Wayable GroupZ 7] & 3% Bl & EE 22 & {5 A
liabilities of the Wayable Group as at the date of Acquisition and the RABERKESEASHZ ATFELR
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the Acquisition B EIERT  AAEEEAEN T ¢
were as follows:
Fair value Previous
recognised carrying
on acquisition amount
Notes MU EESEE WA~
BiaE BRZAFYE FREE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAT
Property, plant and equipment M - R KRR 13 61,527 40,269
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS AR E IR 14 14,000 3,811
Inventories 8 5,144 5,144
Accounts and bills receivable JEWEBR A R R 27,208 27,208
Prepayments, deposits and TEHIE - ZE Xk
other receivables HAtb FEUGRIA 4,062 4,062
Cash and bank balances & RIRITEESH 23,406 23,406
Accounts and bills payable EERR R EE (3,992) (3,992)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&H B & N At FE < FRIE (27,439) (27,439)
Tax payable JER 1A (3,208) (3,208)
Deferred tax liabilities BIENIA BB 24 (7,861) =
92,847 69,261
Goodwill on acquisition WHESIRE RS 16 26,112
Total net assets acquired B FEERRE 118,959
Satisfied by: XA
Issue of shares BTG, 25 113,381
Cash BRe 4,322
Costs associated with the Acquisition L =R TH AR R A AN 1,256

118,959
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29,

30.
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Business Combination (continued) 28. EBaH =
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect 1451 EER2HSNESZSEEBER RAER
of the Acquisition is as follows: TR :
HK$’000
FAT
Cash consideration HERE (4,322)
Costs associated with the Acquisition L S TE AR R A AN (1,256)
Cash and bank balances acquired WUEEIR & R IRTT4E 23,406
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WHEEE B MRS EEBEE RAFE
in respect of the Acquisition 17,828

The goodwill on Acquisition represents value obtainable from
synergies with the Group and opportunities for the Group to benefit
from the Wayable Group’s expertise in lean manufacturing and new
markets provided by the Wayable Group.

Since the Acquisition, the Wayable Group contributed HK$44,443,000

to the Group’s revenue and HK$6,957,000 to the Group’s
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year ended
31 March 2008, the revenue and the profit of the Group for the

year ended 31 March 2008 would have been HK$919,324,000 and
HK$136,694,000 respectively.

Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, prepayments and deposits for property, plant and
equipment of HK$6,237,000 were transferred to property, plant and
equipment upon acceptance by and delivery to the Group (note 15).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not
provided for at the balance sheet date (2008: Nil).

As at 31 March 2009, the Company has given corporate guarantees
to banks to the extent of HK$106,000,000 (2008: HK$106,000,000)
for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

29.

30.

WHESEMEE 2 BBEASENFE 2
195 5] 2K & % #£ Wayable Groupi s & Rk
=2 403 I Wayable GroupfR it 2 ¥ i5
2 EH(EE -

B U B ETE LA SR Wayable Group &7k 52
BHE—TT N\F=-A=+—HIEFEZ
SR A TR/ 44,443,000 7T R AR E &
HE 6,957,000/ 7T

HEHREBEE—_TT N\FEF=A=+—H8It
EEFENELBELE  AIAEEREE"
EENFZA=Z+—BULEFERZEE
WA Ko F 6  Bll 919,324,000/ 7T &
136,694,000/ 7T ©

FeBeRERME

FEFRERZ

FA -+ 6,237,0008 L 2 ME - BE K&K

f%Z%EH KB MR @ AN E BN R A A
RIS EEREYE - B KR (T

‘E‘15)°

BARAR

REERBBRA - AEEWEAA H AR
BZEAZARBR(ZZTTNF &) -

RZZETZNF=ZA=+—8 " AARHH
ETHBEA 7%&2%&171%%1*%%%&
17 1E i &% % 106,000,000 7T ( — T )\
4 : 106,000,000/ 7T ) A AR °
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements 31. BEHERHE
The Group leases certain of its office, factories and staff quarters AREERBEEHELHHAEEE THA
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms = -BMEMEIRS  HEIMHLBNT—
ranging from one to three years. E=FPEF o
At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease REEBBERE  REBERNTAIRELE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as HEIE T 2 RRKIEHE SRR T 5
follows: FRER :
2009 2008
ZEENF —2ET)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Within one year —F R 2,618 2,818
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoEFEERE(BREERE) 5,146 863
7,764 3,681
32. Commitments 32. #*&if

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 31
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the
balance sheet date:

bR £ XCPTRESTRFPI 2 A EATESD - &
SENEEABRAZERARNT

2009 2008
—EENE —TT)\4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FAT

Contracted, but not provided for: DR 4VBARBH
Construction of a factory SR 7,279 9,403
Purchases of computer equipment BE BN 799 1,496
Purchases of machinery B Eas 7 -
8,155 10,899

The Company did not have any significant commitments at the
balance sheet date (2008: Nil).

REEBERA - NRFLEEREAE
B(CEENF &\
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33. Related Party Transactions 33. FEALRSH
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) MR ARBA sk HM R D P dll 2 &2

financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

25N AEBRFREREATE
TEARSIT :

Notes 2009 2008
BiaE —EThE =T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THT
Subcontracting fees payable to & 3@ A
related companies ZEEE (i) 15,582 4,844
Sales of finished goods to mEER RISHE R M
related companies (ii) 6,916 31,092
Purchases of raw materials A — B E A TR B R iRt
from a related company (iii) 339 9,053
Notes: B5E
[0) The subcontracting fees paid to Pro Kingtex and & |1 8 7 $3% (i) ABE I FPro Kingtex &+
BFRAE], both of which are the subsidiaries of Yue Yuen, were IWEFRKERAB (ARG A
made according to the terms similar to those offered by the WITzMEAR) - WIRBARE
Group's non-related subcontractors. B JERE A B R AT 2 B U
FGETT ©
(i) The sales of finished goods to Yucheng (Kunshan) and # 5 (E (i) MHRE(RLRME(RIL)EE
1) B A S EBR A A, both of which are the subsidiaries of Yue AamBRAR (MR ABIBRITL
Yuen, were made according to the terms similar to those offered BB A R)) 5 E B TR R M)
to the Group's non-related customers. AEEFFFAER PRI 2 BLE
TGETT ©
(ii) The purchases of raw materials from Shantou Xianda were (i) FSE S EE B RmM R h AR
determined by the directors of the Company and the related AIEFHZBEARZEZRZ
company with reference to the then prevailing market conditions. TSR ERT
The related party transaction in respect of item (i) above LS ()ERFARBEA TR S
constitutes continuing connected transactions during the year B ETARRE4AZE T TE 2 FE
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. &R S o
In respect of items (i) and (i), the contracts of these BB R (i) AR BN = - LEFRXS
transactions were entered in last year and completed in the DREFELE N RRAF 5T
current year. No further contracts were signed in the current PX o AFEI A — BB AA
year. These transactions constituted continuing connected IEZSGERREE—ZTT)\F=
transactions for the year ended 31 March 2008. A=+—BLEEEZHE@AER
=10
The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions ERZRR - LARZIIRAKEZ
were conducted in the ordinary course of business of the —M A BB BIRR LT o
Group.
Details of the Group’s trade balances with its related parties as (o) K%@E/\\QEE (EEd=! Eﬁ%ﬁ@}\i
at the balance sheet date are disclosed in notes 19, 21 and 2B D ERFBR M REN T
23 to the financial statements. 19~ 21 R23H#EFE ©
The directors are the key management personnel of the () BESAAEE EEERAS ©

Group. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 7 to
the financial statements.

P N e BT
5 -
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34.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short
term deposits. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivable and accounts and bills
payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no interest-bearing borrowings, and believes its
exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating units
in US$ and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of US$ and RMB. As the foreign currency
risks generated from the sales and purchases can be set off with
each other, the Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk

is minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining the
balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency. However, as
the Group’s financial statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars,
there will be a translation credit to exchange revaluation reserve as a
result of the RMB appreciation. The majority of the Group’s operating
assets are located in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors the foreign exchange exposures
and will consider hedging the significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise.

34.
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34.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet
date to a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s net profit (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
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MERBERZHERBEK 2

TRITARBEGRIYARBEENAE
SEXATELE ARSD  MABE
BT E Y HEE (MR E AR R
EATEED) -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in net profit
exchange rate and equity

ExLtH AR e 2R
(T~ F) #@m, (R4)

HK$’'000
FAT
2009 —EENF
If HK$ weakens against RMB ST i AR E 5% 9,580
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WS T AREFE (5%) (9,580)
2008 —TEN\F
If HK$ weakens against RMB AT ARBRZE 5% 8,474
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ST AREFAE (5%) (8,474)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts and bills
receivable) and the projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash and available banking
facilities. The directors have reviewed the Group’s working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and determined that the Group has
no significant liquidity risk. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

REBE SRR
AEBEREEERBESRE TAEE
BExERzZER - ZBRTAGEEWHT
AR5 8 E (RS R EE) 2 25
S AREEERZAS R -

AEBEBEREHRS MIRTHEAE
B anienBHtRREER T BT
- EEERANAEENEEESRER
SHBER  TRRAEELEEAN R
ExER - AEEMBREREERER
ETﬁé%@#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬁZi'JEH'\%?RﬁWT
A :

Group A EE
Less than
On demand 1 year Total
EER DPR—F et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT
2009 —EENF

Accounts and bills payable FEER R R RIR - 55,051 55,051
Other payables Hh fERTRIE 25 30,024 30,049
25 85,075 85,100
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34.

35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 34. MERBREEZHEREE 2
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELERE)
Group (continued) NEE(4EF)
Less than
On demand 1 year Total
EER DPR—F st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET T FAT
2008 —ZT)\F
Accounts and bills payable EERA R EE - 55,599 55,599
Other payables E e 58 680 39,807 40,487
680 95,406 96,086
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. AEEEAERRAREEENE = H#ETT
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on R5 - AEBEGHUAGREL AL SNEF
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, EITEERS - 1IN - BRFEERTE
receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. YEEHAZE B -
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third AR AEEERERAREEENE=A
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral. ETRS Bt —RERATESZEEH
i o
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise AEBHEMPBEE(RREReRAEE
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default B R EM BRI 2 EERRIRE
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying HFRRENK - FEZZ&ANRBEE
amounts of these instruments. RZETLHZREE -
Capital management BERER -
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBBEREAZFZBAERREARSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to BELSEREEGE 268 ARIGER
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business. bb R EFFRMERRKT - ARE IR
¥ o
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to INER B A FE A B AR B B IR A AR BR R
it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust REH AR - RERFKABRERERE - K
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment EEEERAEL M TFREZKE - MK
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. REBERKBEITHR - RBIEZZTZTAN
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for FR_FTN\F=A=+—HILFEAR
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008. FHEEAERZBE BRI F I e
& o
The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total current NEEBE AR BN L R (LA R E) & EEFR AR
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group’s policy is to keep MBBEFE)EREER - NEE 2K
the current ratio above 1. RRIEMENL RN P 2 IKTF o
Approval of the Financial Statements 35. MBHIRZME

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 2 July 2009.

BBEBRER_ZTNFLA _BEAR
RIERSIELIRETIT -
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